
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

Regular Meeting Agenda

Monday, October 12, 2015
4:00 p.m., Council Chambers

                      City of South Haven

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

Chairman Art Bolt, Tyler Dotson, Thomas Erdmann, Eugen Gawreliuk, Mike Henry, Robert 
Herrera, Stephanie Timmer, Andy Klavins, Doug Schaffer, Christine Valentine.

3. Approval of Agenda

4. Approval of Minutes – July 13, 2015

5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda

6.   Financial Report

7. Brownfield Report

8.   Central Lofts Eligible Expenses

9.   General Comments

10.  Adjourn

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,
Paul VandenBosch
Secretary, Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

SOUTH HAVEN CITY HALL IS BARRIER FREE AND THE CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN WILL PROVIDE 
THE NECESSARY REASONABLE AUXILIARY AIDS AND SERVICES FOR PERSONS WITH 
DISABILITIES, SUCH AS SIGNERS FOR THE HEARING IMPAIRED AND AUDIO TAPES OF PRINTED 
MATERIALS BEING CONSIDERED AT THE MEETING TO INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES AT THE 
MEETING UPON SEVEN (7) DAYS NOTICE TO THE SOUTH HAVEN CITY HALL.

1



 

 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
Monday, July 13, 2015 

4:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
 

                             City of South Haven  
 

 

 
1. Call to Order by Bolt at 4:00 p.m. 

 
2. Roll Call 
 
 Present:  Erdmann, Gawreliuk, Henry, Klavins, Timmer, Valentine, Bolt 
 Absent:   Dotson, Herrera, Schaffer 
 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 
 Motion by Timmer, second by Valentine to approve the July 13, 2015 regular meeting 

agenda.  
 
 All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
4. Approval of Minutes – April 13, 2015 
 
 Motion by Klavins, second by Erdmann to approve the April 13, 2015 regular meeting 

minutes.  
 
 All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
 None at this time. 
 
6.   Financial Report 
 
 VandenBosch reviewed the Financial Report for the end of the fiscal year. 
 
 Motion by Henry, second by Gawreliuk to accept the Financial Report.  
 

All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
7.   Overton Brownfield Plan 
 
 VandenBosch explained that in order to use the local site remediation revolving fund, the 

property has to be in a Brownfield Plan; another reason is to use Brownfield tax capture to  

2



July 13, 2015 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 

 

2 

 

 recover expenses; noted that a development has been estimated although at this time such 
development is unknown. At this time staff does not want to say what the development will 
be; need input from other boards and need to find a developer that is able to get financing to 
do a development.  

 
 VandenBosch pointed the board to the Resolution provided in the agenda packet, which 

authorizes staff to send the Brownfield Plan to the city council.  
 
 Erdmann questioned what happens if the development is only half of what has been 

estimated by staff. VandenBosch responded that in that case, the city will not be able to 
recover all of our costs. If it is owned by the city the taxable value is zero; there is no capture 
if the city owns the property. VandenBosch said the city’s expenses could be recovered if 
we can attract a development there of sufficient taxable value. 

 
 Bolt requested that VandenBosch read the resolution which he did, as follows:  
 
 Now, therefore, be it resolved that: 
  
 1. The Amendment, attached as Exhibit A, is hereby approved by the BRA Board and 

recommended to the City Council for its approval. 
 
 2.  The BRA Board authorizes and approves expenditures from the local site remediation 

revolving fund for the eligible activities to be undertaken by the City of South Haven Local 
Development Finance Authority pursuant to the Amendment. 

 
 3.  The Amendment shall be submitted to the City Council for approval and adoption in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
 Motion by Henry, second by Timmer to recommend Resolution 2015-03 to the City Council.  
 
 All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
 VandenBosch outlined a possible time table and stated that he hopes to see demolition start 

by October. 
   
 
8.  General Comments 
 
 VandenBosch gave an update on the Factory Condo demolition and remediation project.  
 
9.  Adjourn 
 

Motion by Klavins, second by Henry to adjourn at 4:08 p.m. 
 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 

3



Revenues
Property Tax Captures -                               
Interest Income 1,179                           
Other Revenue -                               
Other Transfers In -                               
                Total Revenue 1,179                            

Expenditures
Administrative Costs
General Fund 4,500                           
               Total Administrative Expenses 4,500                           

Contractual Services 61,516                         
              Total Other Expenses 61,516                         

Total Expenditures 66,016                          

Year-to-Date Fund Gain/(Loss) (64,837)                        

Cash and Investments
Cash 254,615                       
Certificates of Deposit 279,117                       
Other Financial Investments 686,328                       
Total 1,220,059                  

City of South Haven
Brownfield Authority

For the period ended September 30, 2015

SUMMER TAX CAPTURES CREDITED 10/2/15

4



September 4, 2015

TO: Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

FR: Paul VandenBosch

RE: Brownfield Report and Reimbursements

The 2014-2015 Brownfield Report shows tax capture revenue for each brownfield plan.  In 
cases where a developer has environmental expenses for reimbursement, the Life of Plan 
Balance is the amount available for reimbursement.

After identifying the amount available for reimbursement, staff checks for any delinquent 
property taxes.  If there are delinquent taxes, the reimbursement amount is reduced by the 
delinquent tax amount.  The unpaid balance remains in the brownfield plan account and is 
available for reimbursement in the future.

Staff is recommending two brownfield reimbursements, as indicated in the resolution and 
letters to developers.

Staff Recommendation:

Approve the Resolution Authorizing Payment of Brownfield Plan Reimbursements.

5



BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
OF THE CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN

VAN BUREN AND ALLEGAN COUNTIES, MICHIGAN

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-03

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF BROWNFIELD REIMBURSEMENTS

Minutes of a regular meeting of the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority of the City of
South Haven, Van Buren and Allegan Counties, Michigan, held in the City Hall, 539 Phoenix
Street, South Haven, Michigan 49090 on October 12, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. local time.

PRESENT:                                                                                                                          

ABSENT:                                                                                                                             

The following preamble and resolution was offered by Member                                  and
supported by Member                                     .

WHEREAS,  the  City  of  South  Haven  has  approved  brownfield  plans  which  provide  for
reimbursement of environmental expenses to developers; and

WHEREAS, each year, a report is prepared by staff which identifies the amount of tax capture
for each brownfield plan, and recommends the appropriate amount of reimbursement to eligible
developers; and,

WHEREAS, staff has reviewed the tax captures and balances for each plan, has debited each
plan account for prorated administrative expenses, has added prorated interest income to the
plan  accounts,  has  reviewed  approved  eligible  expenses,  has  reviewed  delinquent  tax
payments debiting them from the proposed payment and has recommended a reimbursement
for brownfield plans which show a balance to be reimbursed.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority approves
and authorizes the following brownfield reimbursement payments as follows:

Roland J. Peterson, LLC
Peterson Land Company, Inc.
PO Box 638
Douglas, MI 49406

$6,141.11

Lago Blue, LLC
7300 West Q Ave.
Kalamazoo, MI 49009

$24,878.20

RECORD OF VOTE:

Yeas:                                                                                                                                                 

Resolution 2015-03
- 1 -

6



Nays:                                                                                                                                                 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

                                                               
Arthur Bolt, Chair
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the
City of South Haven Brownfield Redevelopment Authority at a meeting held on the 12th day of
October, 2015, at which meeting a quorum was present, and that this resolution was ordered to
take immediate effect. Public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in compliance
with the Open Meetings Act, Act No. 167 of the Public Acts of Michigan 1976 (MCL 15.261 et
seq).

                                                               
Paul VandenBosch, Secretary

Resolution 2015-03
- 2 -

7



City of South Haven 09/04/15
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority
Brownfield Plan Revenue and Expenses
As of June 30, 2015

Proposed 
2014-2015 2014-2015 Life of Plan Life of Plan Life of Plan Maximum Capture
Revenue Reimbursements Revenue Reimbursements Balance Plan Amount Deadline

1421 Kalamazoo 1 Local Closed .00 109,337.09 109,337.09 .00 675,000.00 Closed
1421 Kalamazoo 1 School Closed .00 565,662.91 436,445.00 129,217.91

Revolving Fund Local Closed .00 20,702.66 .00 20,702.66 675,000.00 Closed
Revolving Fund School Closed .00 565,662.91 .00 565,662.91

1421 Kalamazoo 2 Local 6,453.80 .00 109,130.50 36,715.61 72,414.89 400,000.00 2034

KSU Local 151.66 .00 1,201.68 .00 1,201.68 436,500.00 2028
KSU School 306.18 .00 4,220.05 .00 4,220.05

Factory Condo 1 Local Closed .00 198,087.08 198,087.08 .00 380,000.00 Closed
Factory Condo 1 School Closed .00 181,912.92 48,640.00 133,272.92

Factory Condo 2 Local 24,102.34 .00 97,607.93 28,090.23 69,517.70 434,650.00 2022
Factory Condo 2 School 22,454.83 .00 90,971.66 .00 90,971.66

900 Indiana Local Closed .00 .00 .00 .00 319,687.00 Closed

900 Indiana Revolving Fund .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 Five Years 2017

1070 Indiana Local 6,141.11 6,141.11 96,131.79 89,990.68 6,141.11 2,004,657.05 2022

Sherman Hills Local 6,949.61 .00 79,511.40 .00 79,511.40 2,000,000.00 2015

500 Erie Local 26,091.67 24,878.20 269,578.56 236,336.87 33,241.69 817,232.00 2019

The Preserve Local 14,370.88 .00 100,361.17 3,025.98 97,335.19 3,967,407.00 2026
The Preserve School Closed .00 .00 .00 .00 Closed

TOTAL 107,022.08 31,019.31 2,490,080.31 1,186,668.54 1,303,411.77 12,110,133.05

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



October 7, 2015

TO:  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

FR: Paul VandenBosch

RE: Central Lofts, 500 Erie Street Environmental Expenses

The Central Lofts brownfield plan included expenses related to capping of the former coal and
ash storage areas south of the Central School building.  The plan states that backfilling and 
capping of the site is an eligible expense.

The developer has submitted invoices for work related to backfilling and capping of the 
current parking lot area.  The invoices are for fill and paving the parking area.  The invoices 
for approval at this time total $129,079.38.

Previously, $562,885.64 were approved as eligible expenses.  With the current request, the 
total eligible expense will be $691,965.02.  

The maximum plan amount is $817,232.  Capture into this plan ends in 2019.  2014-15 
capture was $26,091.67.

To date, $58,119.89 has been reimbursed to the developer (including the 2015 
reimbursement).

Staff Recommendation:

Approved the request to accept $129,079.38 of eligible expenses in the 500 Erie Street 
Central Lofts brownfield plan. 

20



21



 

347 Hoover Boulevard, Suite C • Holland, MI 49423 • P. 616.393.0449 • F. 616.392.3540 

Ann Arbor • Chicago• Columbus • Grand Rapids • Holland • Indianapolis    

w w w . n e d e r v el d . c o m 

 
May 11, 2015 
 
Paul VandenBosch 
City of South Haven 
539 Phoenix Street 
South Haven, MI 49090 
 
RE: Erie Street Properties, LLC – Brownfield Reimbursement  
 
Dear Paul VandenBosch: 
 
The Erie Street Properties, LLC conducted activities on the south parking lot of 
500 Erie Street, South Haven, MI, 49090. These activities included the capping 
of the known contamination through the construction of a paved parking lot. The 
total amount requested for the costs through 12/31/14 is $129,079.38.  
 
This reimbursement request is an eligible expense under Act 381. All work stated 
in this reimbursement request falls under the “Soil Characterization, Disposal, 
Backfill, Capping, Lead and Asbestos Abatement, etc.” work plan according to 
the 500 Erie Street Brownfield Plan. Copies of the invoice totals for all expenses 
are enclosed with this letter.  
 
I hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the above information is true 
and accurate.  
 
 
Respectfully, 

 
Gregg A. Henry 
Environmental Professional 
 
 
Enclosed:  
-Invoice Totals 
 
 
 
 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37


	BRA Agenda, October 12, 2015
	July 13, 2015 Minutes
	Financial Report
	Brownfield Report and Reimbursements
	Central Lofts Eligible Expenses



